
LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

Present: Chairman R. Bennett, D. Andersen, J. Brown, R. Haak, J. Palmer, L. Willoughby, CEO
A. Backus, Zoning Compliance Assistant J. Holtje & Attorney J. Campbell.  

Excused: J. Sparling, Secretary A. Houk

Note, Public Meetings (Covid-19) precautionary policies were followed tothebestofourability
andincluded:   

Applicants would typically beasked towait intheir vehicles until instructed toenter the
building; however, theattendees atthismeeting wereabletomaintain social distancing
andwore facecoverings.  
Hand sanitizer wasmade available attheentrance ofthetownhall.  
Meeting room occupancy wasrestricted tonomorethan50% ofthemaximum
occupancy (or48persons).  Less than48persons attended thismeeting.   

Agenda:   

th1)  Approve themeeting minutes. –August 24, 2020

2)  Benjamin Damon – South Livonia Road, Livonia, NY.   
Approval ofSubdivision – 84.-1-44.327

3)  Bruce Beardsley – Price Road, Livonia, NY.   
Approval ofSubdivision – 83.-1-10.217

4)  James & Joyce Willard – Adams Road, Livonia, NY.   
Approval ofSubdivision – 85.-1-3.123

5)  Robert Gallagher/Prometheous Farm & Market – 5804Decker Rd, Livonia, NY.  
Preliminary SitePlan review

Chairman RickBennett opened themeeting at7:00p.m.   

th1) Approve Meeting Minutes forAugust 24, 2020.  Chairman RickBennett asked foramotion
toapprove.  M/2/C (J. Palmer/ D. Andersen) approved assubmitted. Carried 6-0.    

2)  Benjamin Damon – SouthLivonia Road, Livonia, NY.   

Chairman RickBennett asked Barry Carestio, Land Surveyor representing Benjamin Damon to
come forward fortheSubdivision ofSouth Livonia Road, TaxParcel # 84.-1-44.327.  Benjamin
Damon isproposing todivideoff5+ acres fromthe35+ acreparcel.  Theparcel islocated onthe
westsideofSouth Livonia Road, 250’ northofPrice Road.  Thefuture desire istocombine the

1



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

house parcel with theremaining 30acres, butthe30acres islocated intheAgDistrict andthe
house isnot, which prevents themfrombeing combined now.  That isthelong-termplan.  CEO
Adam Backus stated thatheisareaware that therearesome wetlands onthebacksideofthe
property.  Wewere concerned forthenorth parcel, butthere isplenty ofroomforthisonebeing
proposed.  It’sasimple proposal without much risk, andplenty ofroomtodowhat theywant to
doontheparcel.  Wecanevaluate theSitePlanrelative toaBuilding Permit request.    

Chairman RickBennett asked foraMotion towaive thePublic Hearing. Motion towaive: M/2/C
R. Haak/J. Palmer) Carried 6-0

Chairman RickBennett andtheBoard reviewed SEQR.  Negative declaration wasdetermined.   
Motion toapprove: M/2/C (J. Palmer/R. Haak) Carried 6-0

CEOA. Backus stated that thisSubdivision wassubmitted toLivingston County Planning Board
fortheir review.  Livingston County has responded that theapplication hasnosignificant
Countywide impact.  Therefore, approval ordisapproval isamatter oflocaloption.  

Chairman RickBennett asked foramotion toapprove theSubdivision aspresented. Motion to
approve: M/2/C (J. Brown/J. Palmer) Carried 6-0

2)  Bruce Beardsley – Price Road, Livonia, NY.   

Chairman RickBennett asked Barry Carestio, Land Surveyor representing Bruce Beardsley to
come forward fortheSubdivision ofPrice Road, TaxParcel # 83.-1-10.27.  Bruce Beardsley is
proposing todivide a60+ acreparcel intotwolots.  Theparcel islocated onthesouth sideof
Price Road, 1250’ westofPennemite Road.  Barry reviewed theSubdivision mapwith the
Board.  CEOAdam Backus asked forclarification regarding maintaining theaccess through the
existing easements.  There wasadriveway sitedistance situation inthisarea, butitwas
determined nottoaffect thissubdivision.  Barry Carestio confirmed that theeasements willstill
provide access tobothparcels.  There isalsoplenty ofroomtoputinanewdriveway ifneeded
inalocation withgoodsightdistance.  Barry Carestio stated thatitissetupsothat thefarm
parcel tothewestofthatdriveway, canalsousethedriveway. Itwasdiscussed that intheevent
ofanemergency, anyoftheaccesses could beused.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatifsomeone
wanted topursue building ahouse inthebackparcel, wewould have toaddress fireaccess
during SitePlanapproval process.   

Thiswas determined tobeaminorSubdivision thatwasexempt fromLivingston County
Planning Board forreview, perSection 239-mandnoftheNYSGeneral Municipal Law.    

Chairman RickBennett asked foraMotion towaive thePublic Hearing. Motion towaive: M/2/C
J. Brown/J. Palmer) Carried 6-0

Chairman RickBennett andtheBoard reviewed SEQR.  Negative declaration wasdetermined.   
Motion toapprove: M/2/C (J. Palmer/R. Haak) Carried 6-0

2



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

Chairman RickBennett asked foramotion toapprove theSubdivision aspresented. Motion to
approve: M/2/C (R. Haak/D. Anders0n) Carried 6-0

2)  James & Joyce Willard – Adams Road, Livonia, NY.   

Chairman RickBennett asked Barry Carestio, Land Surveyor representing James & Joyce
Willard tocome forward fortheSubdivision ofAdams Road, TaxParcel # 85.-1-3.123, located
intheAgriculture Residential District 3, (ARC-3).  TheWillard’sareproposing todividea5+  
acreparcel from113-acreparcel.  Theparcel islocated onthenorth sideofAdams Road, 658’  
eastofFederal Road.  Barry Carestio stated thatanadditional note (3), hasbeen added tothe
plans regarding thewetland, andanyneeded separation forfuture Building Permits.  Zoning
Compliance Assistant JulieHoltje stated that theBoard should beaware ofroad frontage
disappearing andduetotheangle, andthewaythat theexisting farmhouse islocated, access to
thelandintherearshould beconsidered. Barry Carestio agreed andstated thatanadditional
Subdivision application willbecoming nextmonth thataddresses this issue.    

Thiswasdetermined tobeaminor Subdivision thatwasexempt fromLivingston County
Planning Board forreview, perSection 239-mandnoftheNYSGeneral Municipal Law.    

Chairman RickBennett asked foraMotion towaive thePublic Hearing. Motion towaive: M/2/C
J. Palmer/L. Willoughby) Carried 6-0

Chairman RickBennett andtheBoard reviewed SEQR.  Negative declaration wasdetermined.   
Motion toapprove: M/2/C (J. Palmer/J. Brown) Carried 6-0

Chairman RickBennett asked foramotion toapprove theSubdivision aspresented. Motion to
approve: M/2/C (R. Haak/D. Anderson) Carried 6-0

5)  Robert Gallagher/Prometheous Farm & Market – 5804Decker Rd, Livonia, NY.  

Chairman RickBennett asked Robert Gallagher andAttorney Steven Sessler tocomeforward for
theSitePlanreview. Thisisfortheproposed development ofPrometheus Farm andMarket.   
Robert Gallagher stated that theyhavesubmitted apreliminary SitePlanforreview.  TheSite
Plancovered theFarm overview andstatutory compliance, which waspresented totheBoard the
last timetheywerehere.  Adescription oftheFarm, andwhat thebusiness isgoing tobe.  It
addresses thepoints inCEOAdam Backus’smemo.  Attorney Steven Sessler stated that they
would liketoknow where theyareatwithin thePlanning Board process.  TheOctober 2019
memo fromCEOA. Backus, provided points toproceed withapreliminary SitePlanapplication.   
Inthatperiod oftime, Prometheus Farms didrespond totheitems fromthememo. They are
present inhopesofhaving thepreliminary SitePlanapproved.  Theywould liketoproceed with

thaLivingston County referral attheirnextmeeting onDecember 10, 2020.  They feelthat the
County’sreview isimportant totheirapplication.  Theyarealsoasking that thePlanning Board
waive thePublic Hearing onthePreliminary SitePlan.  IfaPublic Hearing isneeded, theyare
requesting thatbeontheFinalSitePlanapplication.  Thiswould giveenough timetogetinput
back fromtheCounty Planning Board.  Jeanne Brown stated thatitmaybebetter tohaveit

3



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

submitted totheCounty Planning Board first.  Ifthepublic hadanyconcerns, theanswers may
beprovided backfromtheCounty after their review.  Attorney Steven Sessler stated that the
plans thathavehadprepared, include architectural, septic, site & parking plans.  Theengineering
thathasgoneonhasbeenveryextensive. TheCounty Planning Board would beagoodresource
touseintheir referral andrecommendation process.  Itwould begood toseeiftheyhaveany
questions regarding theitems thatarecoming up.  Chairman RickBennett stated thathisinitial
thought wasthatifwewait tohaveaPublic Hearing after theCounty Referral, youmayhaveto
gothrough thatagain.  Inthepreliminary process, itwould bebeneficial togetthecomments
fromthePublic inregard totheSitePlan, thensendittoLivingston County Planning Board for
their review andcomments.  When theBoard receives theFinalSitePlan, atthatpoint itisdone.   
Joanne Palmer stated thatsheagreed.  CEOA. Backus stated that, inanattempt tohonor the
request foranexpedited siteplan (which doesn’treallyexist), wealready tried togetthis through
totheCounty Planning Board, buttheywerequestioning whether wehadacomplete application.      
Thechallenge thatwearealldealing withisthat theTownofLivonia recognizes theimportance
ofagricultural operations, andtheirability tobefreefromunreasonable andunwarranted
interference orrestriction; butthisproposed agricultural operation isnotwhatmostpeople think
ofwhen theychose toliveinanagricultural community.  Thisnewtypeofoperation (toour
community) hasgreater potential tocause adverse impacts totheneighbors, sowearetrying to
strikeabalance between Ag & residential uses. Theproposed operation includes retail salesand
public assembly, which isnottypical inourresidential/agricultural districts.  TheCounty is
waiting forustofindthisbalance anddetermine what levelofreview isappropriate.      
Wearenotfarawayfromadvising theCounty that thisisacomplete application.  Attorney
Steven Sessler stated thathethought theywould need towaituntil theCounty responds.  CEO
A. Backus stated thatwehave tried togettheCounty torespond back, butwhen theyreadour
siteplanprocedures, thisusedoesn’tseemtofit.  Attorney Steven Sessler asked what theCounty
suggested that theywanted toseewhen theapplication wassubmitted.  Attorney James
Campbell stated thathedidn’tbelieve ithadgonethat far.  TheCounty stated that theapplication
didn’tcheck alltheboxes intermsofCode inrelation toacompleted SitePlanapplication.   
When itwasdiscussed about thebalancing regarding theAg & Markets.  TheCounty hadsome
concern thatourCode doesn’tprovide adequate language tothateffect.  Theydon’tbelieve that
the “Right tofarm” impacts Zoning.  Attorney Steven Sessler asked, howdoes theapplicant
move forward.  Attorney James Campbell stated that theBuilding & Zoning office isrequired to
make sure theapplication iscomplete forreview, andtheCounty willhonor that.  TheCounty
willreview itandschedule itontheDecember County Planning Board meeting.  Theywillmake
comments onthereferral.  Heisinfavorofdoing thePublic Hearing early intheprocess asit
canbeinsightful fortheapplicant.  Anycomments canbeaddressed during theprocess.  It’snot
amatter ofhaving multiple Public Hearings, butwhen theywould bemostefficient. They
provide everyone with feedback thatwould bepertinent toagoodproject.  Chairman Rick
Bennett asked, atwhatpoint should weschedule aPublic Hearing?  Attorney James Campbell
stated thatyoucanschedule aPublic Hearing once there isadetermination bytheBuilding &  
Zoning office astothesufficiency oftheapplication.  CEOA. Backus stated that thediscussion
atthispoint isidentifying theissues andindicating totheCounty thatwehaveacomplete
application.  Chairman RickBennett stated that items within thesubmitted Preliminary SitePlan
needs tobeclarified.    

4



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

CEOAdam Backus hadpreviously stated that there isworker housing which needs tobelooked
at, andhereferenced manufactured homes, butitturnsoutthat theyareusingRV’s, andnot
Mobile Homes.  Weagain needtofigure outhowtobalance worker housing inrelation tothe
code, which states youcannot occupy anRVformore than14consecutive days.  Itwould be
nicetoknow whatAG & Markets recognizes assuitable housing.  Howdowedealwithour
Zoning Code thatstates 14consecutive days?  Chairman RickBennett stated thatthere was
reference tothe14consecutive days, andtheuseofaConditional UsePermit foraperiod longer
than14days.  Robert Gallagher stated thatwhathehadplanned, cancomply with the14-day
restriction.  Robbyn Haak asked howmany workers arethere staying atonetime?  There looks
tobe6RV’s.  Robert Gallagher stated that there aretwothatarefunctional withaircondition &  
heating which serve asoneperson units.  TwooftheRV’swillbeusedformarketing salesanda
foodoperation.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatitneeds tobedetermined iftheotherRV’sare
projects, outdoor storage, partofafarmoperation orarejunk/scrap.  Specifically, theFireCode
doesaddress FoodTruck operations.  Attorney James Campbell stated thatMr. Gallagher is
stating that fourofthemaregoing tobeused intheoperation.  Itneeds tobedetermined how
theywillbeused.  Willcustomers becoming inandoutofthem?  Robert Gallagher stated that
thelarger onewillhaveconsumers entering & existing.  Thesmaller RVwillbeusedasafood
pantry thatwillnothave access tothepublic.  ThefinalRVisaproject forhimpersonally.   
There aretwoforliving, onelargeSpartan Trailer that issilver, whichwillberenovated intoa
sales areaoraplace forpeople tosit.  Itwillbemobile andwillbelicensed.  Attorney James
Campbell asked theapplicant toexplain whythe14consecutive dayswon’tbeanissue forhim.   
Robert Gallagher stated thatitisthenature ofthepeople whowillstay there.  Theywillmove
outandstay inother locations, suchasRochester, sothe14days isnotanissue.  Robbyn Haak
asked, what isthetimeinbetween the14consecutive days.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatitis
notspecific.  Theintent isthatifyour livingthereformore thantwoweeks, it’smoreofa
permanent nature.  Weneed tolookattheintentofit.  There aresituations where RV’sare
hooked uptowater & sewer.  CEOAdam Backus brought upthehoursofoperation andbusiness
hours. Robert Gallagher stated that, although someAgri-tourism activities maybegin noearlier
than6am, finishing nolater than10pm.  Direct salesandAgri-tourism activities willoperate
Wednesday through Sunday, May through October.  Limited days intheoffseason tosustain the
business.  Hours anddaysmaybeadded during themainseason ifeconomically justifiable.   
Asaworking farm operation, some generally accepted agricultural practices may needtooccur
outside ofthe6:00amto10:00pmtimeframe. However, theyexpect these situations toberare.   
Chair RickBennett stated that inregard totheRV’s, thelocation willneedtobenoted inthe
FinalSitePlan, aswellastheirpurpose.  Thiswillalsoprovide assistance totheFireDepartment
ifthere iseverafire.  CEOAdam Backus stated that thehoursofoperation arerelative tothe
impact.  Onthedeckandinthebuilding, itisbeingproposed that therecould be101occupants,  
pluswhatever isgoing onoutside. Would therebe200people onsite?  Thatwould makea
difference ontheimpact tothecommunity.  Attorney James Campbell stated itmakes sense to
break itdown when itwouldbeopen tothepublic, opposed towhen farmoperation business is
being conducted.  Itwould make sensetoseparate thehoursofoperation, indicating what is
taking place during those hours.  CEOAdam Backus stated that there seems tobesome
confusion overstandard operating practices forafarm.  From cutting HaytoaStoke Farms.   
Theyarestating thatitfallsallunder thetermsofafarmoperation because oftheright tofarm
definition.  Chairman RickBennett referenced atraining session that referred toAgritourism

5



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

withanexample ofacornmaze.  Itstated thatthecornmaze hadveryspecific hours thatit
would beopen, withrunning lateonoccasion.  Therestoftheactivity iscutoffat5pm.  CEO
Adam Backus stated thatstandard operating procedures forafarmisnotwhat theapplicant is
talking about.  Theyaresaying thatitall fallsunder anumbrella definition that theytookoutof
Right toFarm” which references Ag & Markets, andreferences StateCertified Agproperties,  

which thisisnot.  There issome confusion here.  Jeanne Brown stated thatyou’renotgoingto
telladairy farmer whentomilkhiscows, butitisreasonable toknow whenheisgoingtosell
themilk tothegeneral publicontheproperty.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatwhen youare
talking about Agritourism, there ismoreofanimpact.  Robbyn Haak asked Chairman Rick
Bennett tofurther explain thetraining conference heattended, inrelation totheCornMaze in
Macedon, andAgritourism.  Chairman RickBennett stated thatover theyears ithasdeveloped
fromjustalittle farmstand, intoselling cider, wineandbakegoods.  TheCornMaze startsat6- 
7pmandat11pm theyblowthehorntosignal that itistimetoleave.  Thesiteishuge, butthey
arerestricted tothenumber ofcars that they canpark which isabout 200cars.  Prometheus
Farms hasapproximately 10acres and islimited tothenumber ofcars that theycanpark.  CEO
Adam Backus stated thatatthelastmeeting, theBoard specifically asked theapplicant to
provide detail onoverflow parking.  Inoneexplanation theystated there isroomfor20parking
spaces, butthepreliminary SitePlanonlyshows 7parking spaces, withonebeing for
handicapped.  Thisplan isproposing toaccommodate 101people inthebarnandonthedeck, as
wellasother people ontheproperty.  Chairman RickBennett stated wehaveapartial SitePlan
forasmallplotofland.  Chairman RickBennett stated that theapplicant hasenough roomfor
thepeople, butthere isnotenough roomtopark thecars.  Robert Gallagher stated that forthat
occupancy, thelegalminimum is7spaces.  Attorney James Campbell clarified thatwhat the
Board wants tosee, isaSitePlan thatshows howitwill lookintheend.  Robert Gallagher stated
thathisDesign Engineer advised himtoproceed with theminimum required parking spaces.  It
isrequested that theapplicant provide further details regarding accommodating additional
parking.  IftheSitePlan onlyshows 7parking spaces, that iswhat theapplicant willberestricted
to.  CEOAdam Backus explained that theBuilding/FireCode gave theminimum number of
parking spaces pertheoccupant load, that isdifferent fromwhat isrequired fortheSitePlan.  If
theapplicant onlywants tohave7people, then theyhavemettheFireCode, butnotyour
intended occupancy.  Attorney James Campbell stated that thePlanning Board isasking what’s
theimpact going tobeandwants toensure theapplicants planwillwork.  Robert Gallagher
stated thathethought theycould configure for25spaces.  Attorney James Campbell suggested
that theapplicant buildhisplan largely around theparking, ingress andegress.  Theapplicant is
limited based onwhatyoupropose todowith thebuilding, based onthegeography ofthesite,  
andhowmanyparking spaces youcanaccommodate.  Thegoal istocreate aplanonpaper that
gives itthebestchance ofworking fluidly inpractice.  ThisBoard wants toknowifyouhave
reasonable parking accommodations andwhat istheflowoftrafficwillbeinandout.  Chairman
RickBennett stated thattheBoard islooking foraSitePlanthatshows what theapplicant is
asking forsothat theBoard canensure that theplan iscompliant.  Chair RickBennett stated that
theBoard needs toknow what themaximum possible cars (on-site) isgoing tobe.  Attorney
Steven Sessler stated thatiftherewere tobetwenty-fivecarsmaximum, thatwould notresult in
overahundred people onsite.  Even though thebuilding iscapable forthatoccupancy, parking
cannot accommodate thatamount ofpeople onsiteatonce.  Chairman RickBennett stated thatif
inthefuture theamount ofparking andpeople onsiteatonetimeweretochange, theywould

6



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

needtoreturn tothePlanning Board forreview.  Robert Gallagher stated thatthere maybetimes
when there isanAgritourism event andbuses arebringing people tothesite.  There maybeover
ahundred people, thebuilding could handle that.  Chairman RickBennett stated thatifyoubring
inabuswithonlyseven parking spaces, thatwouldn’tleave roomforanyavailable parking for
anyothercars.  Weneedyoutotakethat intoaccount when preparing yourSitePlan.  Zoning
Compliance Assistant JulieHoltje stated thatifMr. Gallagher doesexpect buses tobeapartof
theAgritourism thentheparking areaneeds toreflect thetraffic pattern showing dropoffand
pickuppoints, aswellaswhere thebuswould beturning around.  Attorney Steven Sessler asked
forclarification onifamapwitharrows showing thetraffic pattern wouldbesufficient.   
Chairman RickBennett stated itwould.  Chairman Rick Bennett wanted theapplicant toclarify
thehoursofoperation ending at10pm.  CEOAdam Backus stated thatthiswould besimilar to
theWedding Barn’sinthearea, andwhile wedding barns havebeensuccessful, theyhavealso
caused much stress fortheneighbors.  Theneighbors wholivenextdoor totheWedding venue
thought theywerebuying ahouse out inthecountry next toahundred-acre farm.  Nowthey
have thepotential forover100people partying, twenty-nineweekends ayear.  That iswhat we
aretrying togetoutinfrontof.  Isthisgoing tobeahundred cars, ahundred people, orisit
going tobeseven totwenty carsperiodically?  TheBoard needs toknow what theimpact is
going tobe.  Robert Gallagher stated thatwith just theFarm Market, they justdon’tknow, buthe
hasnever seenaFarm Market backuptraffic.  AshisAttorney stated, thenumber ofparking
spaces isgoing todictate howmany people theycanhaveon-site.  Attorney James Campbell
stated that thehoursofoperation needtobedefined.  There islanguage intheSitePlanthat
states inregard toaccepted agricultural practices, hours mayneedtooccur outside ofthe6:00
amto10:00pmtime frame. However, theyexpect these situations toberare.  Robbyn Haak
stated that there isalsoreference toover-nights.  Chairman RickBennett stated thisneeds tobe
defined.  Attorney James Campbell stated that theBoard would liketoseethevision youwant to
trytoaccomplish.  Robbyn Haak stated thattheBoard would alsoliketoknow howoften these
events areplanned.  Joanne Palmer stated thatifthere wasmusic planned atanyofthese events,  
theBoard would liketoknow what typeofmusic thatwouldbe.  Robert Gallagher stated that it
might behardtopredict that.  CEOAdam Backus stated that thiswasabigproblem withthe
Wedding venues andOSBCider.  There needs tobeabalance sothere isnonegative impact to
theneighbors.  Chairman RickBennett stated thatnomusic withsub-woofers, and themusic
stopsby10pm.  Itisbetter tojustkeep themusic toareasonable level, thantrytomeasure what
thedecibels are.  Robbyn Haak stated that theBoard would likemore information detailing what
isbeing requested.  Jeanne Brown stated that thepublic willwant toknow about these items as
well.  Joanne Palmer stated totheapplicant togivetheBoard their worst-casescenario.   
Chairman RickBennett agreed andstated that theBoard willadvise youwhatwillwork, and
whatwillnot.  

CEOAdam Backus stated thatthenext itemtobediscussed waseventboundaries with respect to
hoursofoperation andneighborhood buffers.  Robert Gallagher stated inhisSitePlan thatmost
oftheagritourism activities willoccur inthevicinity ofthefarmmarket building, which
provides aneighborhood ( residence) buffer inexcess of300fttotheStevens andSwain
residences westoftheirproperties. TheClements andKeele properties totheeastareinthe
Agricultural District. Prometheus Farms willabide bysocietal norms regarding noise andlight
pollution within thecontext ofaworking farm. Theywillwork with theLivingston County

7



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

Sheriff’sOffice ifthere isanychance oftraffic flowinterference resulting fromanyactivities.  
They expect those situations toberare.  CEO Adam Backus stated thatitsounds likemore than
seven carsiftheSheriff’sdepartment isneeded.  TheSheriff’sdepartment should weigh inon
this.    

CEOAdam Backus stated thatwewould liketorequest that theexisting Septic & wellwater
locations tobeshown onthemap.  Multiple concerns havebeen received bythepublic and feel
thataPublic Hearing isappropriate.  TheLivingston County Planning Board questions ifthe
submitted SitePlan iscomplete.  Inorder tofeel that theSitePlan iscomplete, clarity needs to
beprovided regarding thepublic assembly, public impacts verseAgexemptions.  Livingston
County Planning Board questions whether theapplication qualifies fortheexemptions.  CEO
Adam Backus hasquestions fortheArchitect regarding thecomputation ofparking spaces based
onoccupant loads.  Currently nolisted useisproposed forthesecond floorofthebarn.   
Architectural plansdonotshow thenorth, south orwestexterior building elevations, which is
moreofaFireCode issue.  Kitchen exhausts going overwalkways, hewould liketoseeheights
ofrailings, etc.  Snow & iceguards should beconsidered toprotect occupants fromsliding snow.   
Animal shelters require ahundred-footsetback.  Fromaresidential structure, there should bea
hundred-footbuffer from animal housing.  State certified AgDistrict wasreferred inregard toan
expedited SitePlanreview, Idonotbelieve theproperty islisted inthatDistrict.  Itisdifficult to
navigate thisapplication because wearetrying tobalance theAgoperation, which doesn’t
usually include someofthefeatures thatarebeing introduced here.  Theimpact totheneighbors
should notbeignored duetotheAgexemptions andnotbeingatypical SitePlan.  Wearetrying
tobalance theessence ofourCode andtheimpact tothecommunity withsomeone’sright to
farmunder thedefinitions theyaredescribing.    

Chair RickBennett stated thatwehave discussed several different numbers regarding the
property’sacreage.  Hewould liketheapplicant toprovide clarification regarding alltheparcels.  
Healsorequests layouts ofallbuildings, RVtrailers, etc.  Zoning Compliance Assistant Julie
Holtje asked ifanypartof5816Decker wasgoing tobepartoftheoperation.  Robert Gallagher
stated that iswhere theresidence islocated, andtheanimal barns.  There willbenopublic atthis
location.  5804Decker willhavesmall scale production, maybe agreen house inthefuture.   
Sales andmarking willbelocated at5804Decker Road.  Any landthat theyarerenting withbe
onayeartoyearbasis.  Chairman RickBennett stated thathewould liketoseethetwoparcels
detailed ontheSitePlanshowing allbuildings andwhat theyare.  Attorney James Campbell
stated thatitshould beonaformal SitePlan.  Itshould show thesiteandalltheimprovements,  
including thetravel trailers, aswell asalltheparking area.    

Chairman RickBennett requested CEOAdam Backus provide asummary ofwhat theBoard is
requesting.  Attorney James Campbell stated that thecutofffortheLivingston County Planning
Board wastheendofNovember.  Heisrequesting that theapplicant provide this information as
soonaspossible astheCounty Planning Board isoverwhelmed withbigger projects andare
requesting applications sooner ifpossible, inorder togetintotheirqueue fortheDecember
meeting.  CEO Adam Backus stated that thegood news isthat theCounty hasthegistofwhatwe
havebeen talking about already.  Itsmatter ofcleaning upthepackage, ifwecanmeet the

8



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
thNOVEMBER 9, 2020

deadlines, wewillschedule itonthefirstavailable meeting date.  Chair RickBennett stated that
themeeting willbescheduled asaPublic Hearing.  

FredForsburg located onPrice Road, owns Honey HillFarms.  Hehasattended themeeting in
support ofsomeofwhatRobert Gallagher does.  Hehasbeen there for42years andasked if
anyone haseverheardofHoney HillFarms.  Hestated thathehasmore customers inNYC &  
Buffalo than hedoes inLivonia.  There raise100% grass fedbeef.  Someone stated traditional
agricultural.  Heisacertified organic farm.  Robert hasanon-traditional agriculture andheisin
support ofhisproposal.  Herequests that theBoard consider thatwhatMr. Gallagher isdoing
maybealittledifferent, but itisstillagriculture.  Robert Gallagher stated thateverything they
plantodofitswithin document number 25301, accepted agricultural practices.  Itisimportant
thatpeople become familiar with thisdocument.  Anything thatheisproposing, isaddressed in
thisdocument.  

Withnofurther questions, Chairman RickBennett asked forMotion toadjourn themeeting at
8:36p.m...  Motion toadjourn: M/2/C (R. Haak/J. Brown) Carried 6-0

Respectfully Submitted,   
Alison Houk, Recording Secretary

9


